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Maureen Spinks

From: <Revbrianpcw@aol . com=
To: =maureen.spinks@btopenworld.com:=
Sent: 26 June 2008 13:15

Attach: William Seward (2).doc
Subject: Re Willam Seward

Dear Maureen,

Many thanks for the information about our mutual friend and a copy of his will from the Records Office. | will
study both docurments with great interest.

During the last few months | have been looking into the matter of the restoration of gravestones of those
who played an imporiant role in the 18th century Welsh Revival. Howell Harris and his family was one such
gravestone to be looked at and that can be found in Talgarth Churchyard some 2 miles from Trefeca where
Harris lived before and after his conversion in 1735. The other was the grave of William Seward that is
known to be in the graveyard of Cusop Church. | knew a good deal about this martyr beforehand as my
father-in-law, the late Rev J.J.Williams was the rector of the church during the time when the plaque was
erected in 1878 inside the church. He and the Warden at Trefeca Lay Centre at that time, A.Merion Roberts
between them decided to mark the fact that William Seward was buried in the churchyard

In 1978, | was shown where the grave site was, but over the years forget the actual location and had to set
aut to find it again this Spring. Having located the grave (after looking at old records in the Trefeca library)
traced it to the second large yew tree on the left from the porch door. Now the interesting bit. The
gravestone clearly states that WS died on the 22nd October 1742 and also contains the quotation from
Philipplans that appears on the tablet in the church and also some other engravings that at this stage
cannol be deciphered.

| have written a report about the findings and all the documentation has now been forwarded to the
Presbyterian Church of Wales History Department for their comments! | have at this time heard nothing.

| have also cross-referenced other datas about the wherezbouts of Howell Harris at the time of the incident
i.e. 1740 or 1742 and discovered some strange occurrences.

The attacks by the mobs in Newport, Monmouth and Caerleon did take place in 1740 when Harris and
others (including the said William Seward) came under fire and Seward was Indeed injured and blinded
apparently. The incident in Hay-on-Wye is linked in certain writings to be at the same time, but it is unlikely |
think. There is further evidence that after 1740 Howell Harris and William Seward went to Coleford and the
city of Gloucester together after the Newport, Monmouth and Caerleon riots, so it is unlikely that what
happensad to WS in martyrdem took place later, probably 1742,

There is much more and much yet to examine. | have already created another link with yourself and will
keep you up to date with the developments. | do have some photographs of the grave etc., but my camera
and computer programme will not let me send the finished article via e mall, If you give me your home
address | will send you copies that will be of interest to your group.

Thanks for all your help so far,

Kind regards, "

Brain Reardon

26/06/2008



William Seward Christian Martyr 1702 — 1740
Buried at St Mary's Churchyard Cusop

The Connexion has known that the body of William Seward, the first martyr of
the 18" century revival, was buried in the graveyard of StMary's Church
Cusop, Heretordshire around about 1740. He was the first martyr who lost his
life after a rebellion when Seward and Howell Harrs were preaching in Hay-
on-Wye Il became an angry meeting when stones and clods of earth were
thrown at the pair during which a large stone struck Seward on the side of the
head. He had previously been blinded by a similar action in the towns of
Newport and Monmouth about a week earlier and as a result of these wounds
he died about a week or so later. The vicar of Hay refused burial because
Seward was a “nonconformist’, but the vicar of Cusop just over the English
border allowed for the body to be interred in his churchyard.

In 1978 a plaque was placed on the wall of the Nave by the then Warden of
Trefeca Rev A. Merion Roberts and the Rector of Cusop Rev J.J Williams,
following a service of dedication to a full church.

Over the years, the site of the actual grave has been neglected even although
the location of it has been described in the St Mary's Church Guide; it has
never been locatad in recent timas until now.

The then Brecon, Radnor and Hereford Presbytery (now part of the Mid-Wales
and Borders Presbytery) discussed at a meeting in 2005, the need to consider
making necessary repairs to the grave stone of Howell Harris's parents grave
in 5t Gwendoline's Churchyard Talgarth. The Rev Brian Reardon informed
Presbytery that the grave of William Seward was only some 8 miles distant
from Talgarth in Cusop just outside Hay-on-Wye on the English side of the
border in Herefordshire, He suggested that the site should be sought out to
see If any repairs would be needed as the work could probably be undertaken
at the same time. The Rev J.J Williams, the Rector of Cusop when the plaque
was erected in 1978 had once indicated to Rev Brian Reardon where the
grave site was but they were unable to locate it at that time (Rev Brian
Reardon's wife Anne is the daughter of the Rev J.J. Williams).

The grave sight proved difficult to locate but after some considerable time
searching, the site was finally discovered in June 2008 beneath a large yew
tree about 100 yards towards the left of the entrance porch of the church.

The grave stone is laid flat upon a raised section of stones that have been
cemented to form a base within the last 30/40 years. It is difficult to read as
moss and lichen covered the surface. It has been possible to identify that this
as the actual site of the grave although there may be some inaccuracies
regarding dates. The plague within the church and some of the historical
documents of the time state that William Seward died in the autumn of 1740
and that he was 38 years old at death. Subsequent investigations show that a
map on the inside cover of a publication “Howell Harris and the Dawn of
Revival" by Richard Bennett (translated from the Welsh by Gomer
M.Roberts) clearly state that the martyrdom tock place in Hay in 1742. Further



study of “Origin and history of Methodism in Wales” by David Young not
only describes the exact location of the grave but confirms the date of 1742.

The incidents that took place in 1740 when Harris and Seward were attacked
in Newport, Cearleon, and Monmouth by hostile crowds are not connected to
the Hay-on-Wye incident when Seward lost his life. Seward was not in the
company of Howell Harris in Hay as Harris's diaries show that he was in
London throughout the whole of October 1742. Strangely, there does not
seem to be any mention of the martyrdom by Harris in his diary for October
and November 1742 in the book “Howell Harris, Reformer and Solider”
when diary entries for these dates are published from pages 24 onwards. In
“Memoirs of the Life and Religious Labours of Howell Harris Esq.” by
John Bulmer published in 1824, there is mention of Harris and Seward
ministering together in Coleford and Gloucester after the Newport and
Cearleon incident when they were attacked this being in 1740.

The gravestone states that he died on the 22" October 1742, a date that is
further borne out by information in “Howell Harris — His own story”
published by Bridge Publications Chepstow UK where on page 9 it says "One
such itinerant preacher was William Seward, who was martyred at Hay in
1742”7

If the stone is to be refurbished it should be done soon before it is not possible
to read the whole of the inscription.

Photographs have been taken of the site and are enclosed with this report.
The stone has been treated with a light brushing with a scrubbing brush and
mild detergent to remove the lichen and moss and the engraving treated with
white chalk dust in order to read as much as possible of the stone's
inscriptions,

The E‘rv:e:m:ur'f"i'inaticm.m:a.y.r consider it appropriate to provide renovations to the
existing stone by professionals and a form of sealant applied that will allow the
stone to stand up to weathering better than the original has.

There is still the matter of the memorial tablet that is in the nave of Cusop
church where the Hay-on-Wye incident relates to the year 1740, that on the
balance of information available elsewhere is clearly not the date of William
Seward's death.

Presented to Presbytery June 2008
By Rev Brian C. Reardon OSL
Minister Northern Pastorate



Details found on the tombstone of William Seward in Cusop Churchyard

“Here lyeth the body of William Seward of Badsay in the County of
Worcester, gent, who departed y life Oct y 22 1742 aged 38"

The gravestone of William Seward has been cleaned using a mild detergent in
order to remove the lichen and damp deposits of green algae. It is possible to
read the data at the centre quite easily including the text from Philippians
chapter 1 verse 21 “For to me, to live is Christ and to die is gain”, but the
text at the bottom of the stone is mostly indistinguishable.

What can be read is this:- “The earth beneath......... live on ......... beaten
path...... nothing.....wait in/on Jesus.

There is also a date 1797.

It is possible that a monumental mason would be able to treat the face of the
stone to provide a more legible interpretation of what was originally carved.

According to the gravestone the date of William Seward’'s death is given as
the 22" October 1742. This information is not in line with records contained
within certain Connexional archives as William Seward died in Hay-on-Wye in
1740 at the age of 38 years after being attacked by the crowds when
preaching God's word. The plaque within the St Mary’'s Church at Cusop
states the year of his death as 1740,

Brian Reardon
June 2008
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